# Code of Ordinances of the Borough of Huntingdon

#### **DISCLAIMER**

The electronic version of the Borough of Huntingdon Code of Ordinances is not the document of issue and the Borough of Huntingdon's printed and published Code remains the primary source and document of issue for all purposes. In the event of a conflict between the electronic version of the Code of Ordinances and the official printed Borough of Huntingdon Code of Ordinances, the official printed Code of Ordinances shall govern. Copies of the official Borough of Huntingdon Code of Ordinances may be purchased from the Township. The user is advised that there may be amendments to the Code of Ordinances which have been enacted after the last revision date of the electronic version of the Code of Ordinances.

Keystate Publishers, Inc. makes no warranty, express or implied, with respect to the accuracy or completeness of the electronic version of the Code of Ordinances or the capability of the electronic version of the Code of Ordinances, and all liability with respect thereto is expressly disclaimed. The service and system is furnished by KPI on an "as is," as available basis. All warranties of merchantability and fitness for a particular purpose are expressly disclaimed. No representation or demonstration shall constitute a warranty of the electronic version of the Code of Ordinances unless expressly incorporated into an agreement between the parties.

# **Code of Ordinances**

of the

# **Borough of Huntingdon**

Huntingdon County, Pennsylvania

Published by Authority of the Borough

Adopted by Ord. 858, 3/17/2009

KEYSTATE PUBLISHERS, INC. 300 West King Street, P.O. Box 366 Shippensburg, PA 17257

# **CONTENTS**

Municipal Officials v	
Foreword vii	
Adopting Ordinance ix	
Fee Schedule xxi	
Chapter 1 Administration and Government	1-1
Chapter 2 Animals	
Chapter 3 Bicycles	
Chapter 4 Buildings	
Chapter 5 Code Enforcement	
Chapter 6 Conduct	
Chapter 7 Fire Prevention and Fire Protection	
Chapter 8 Floodplains	
Chapter 9 [Reserved]	
Chapter 10 Health and Safety	
Chapter 11 Housing	
Chapter 12 [Reserved]	
Chapter 13 Licenses, Permits and General Business Regulations	
Chapter 14 [Reserved]	
Chapter 15 Motor Vehicles and Traffic	
Chapter 16 [Reserved]	
Chapter 17 Riverview Cemetery	
Chapter 18 Sewers and Sewage Disposal	
Chapter 19 [Reserved]	
Chapter 20 Solid Waste	
Chapter 21 Streets and Sidewalks	
Chapter 22 Subdivision and Land Development	
Chapter 23 Stormwater Management	
Chapter 24 Taxation; Special	
Chapter 25 Trees	
Chapter 26 Water	
Chapter 27 Zoning	
Appendix	
A Annexation of Territory	A -:
B Debt and Bond Issues	
C Franchises and Services	
D Governmental and Intergovernmental Affairs	
E Plan Approval	
F Public Property	
G Sewers	
H Streets and Sidewalks	
I Water	
J Zoning; Prior Ordinances	
Table to the Disposition of All Ordinances	
Table to the Disposition of Air Ordinances	
Index	
<u> </u>	

#### **Officials**

#### of the

# **Borough of Huntingdon**

County of

Huntingdon, Pennsylvania

#### **ELECTED OFFICIALS**

Mayor - Foster G. Ulrich, Jr.

#### Borough Council

President
- Glenn A. Stampfle
Vice President
- Richard D. Myers
- Gregory Scott Shaffer
- Jeffrey M. Speck
- Donald M. Rudy
- John T. Gradwell
- John R. Shuck
Tax Collector
- Karl W. Lang

#### APPOINTED OFFICIALS

Manager - Kenneth E. Myers Secretary - Karen A. Foust Treasurer - John R. Franks, Jr.

Code Officer - Rod Smay

Solicitor - Lawrence L. Newton
Engineer - Raymond H. Myers, P.E.
CET Engineering Services

Auditors - CPA Associates

#### **FOREWORD**

*History* 

This comprises the codification of the ordinances of the Borough of Huntingdon. The town of Huntingdon, described in early deeds as being "at Standing Stone on Juniata," was laid out in 1767, only 13 years after this region of Pennsylvania was purchased from the Indians. The Rev. William Smith, head of the College of Philadelphia (now University of Pennsylvania) and an energetic speculator in frontier lands, was the town founder and proprietor. To ensure the development of his town. Smith's deeds required lot owners to erect a substantial house within a year or so of purchase.

Nevertheless, growth was slow because of unsettled conditions in this frontier region during the Revolution. But settlers poured into the area during the 1780s, and in 1787, Huntingdon was made the seat of a new county, named for the already thriving town. A pleased Dr. Smith joined local citizens in contributing funds to build a county courthouse.

As this handsome brick "seat of justice" was being constructed in 1796, Huntingdon was incorporated as a Borough. Its early date of incorporation, by Juniata Valley standards, led Huntingdon's mid-nineteenth century newspaper editors to bestow on it the nickname of "the ancient borough."

Many of the houses built during the town's earliest period of development were log, with a scattering of brick and stone structures. A few of these eighteenth and earliest nineteenth century buildings survive along Perm Street between Second and Sixth, combined with a number of handsome brick residences built in the mid-nineteenth century by the town's increasingly prosperous citizens. Also erected during this second stage of the town's development was the county's second courthouse, which from 1842 to 1883 occupied the same plot of ground on which the present courthouse was later constructed.

Despite Huntingdon's very early founding, and the survival of representative buildings from its first century of development, the majority of outstanding buildings which line Huntingdon's downtown streets today document a later period of expansion and development which occurred between the Civil War and World War I. During this extended period, many of the ancient borough's original buildings were replaced by the larger and more substantial structures now seen along its streets. They signify a new social and economic structure, made possible by efficient railroad transportation, which saw Huntingdon transformed from a town of less than 1500 residents in 1850 to double that population (3034) in 1870 and to more than 6000 citizens in 1900.

The difference was industry, particularly manufacturing, which blossomed along the railroad, providing scores of jobs and fueling a building boom of major proportions. The workers attracted to Huntingdon's new factories, which manufactured everything from paper tablets to railroad cars, provoked a rash of house building, particularly in the rapidly developing West End. The town fathers organized a Board of Trade to attract development. Two of their projects have had significant long-term effects on the town: promoting the expansion of Juniata College on a West End hill-top site and securing the development of a large State prison on a site just across the river in Smithfield.

A distinction began to arise in Huntingdon between its residential and commercial sections, and a "downtown" developed, where retail business was centered. The expanding population needed stoves and furniture, clothing and shoes, drugs, hardware, and coal. They required banks, schools, a bigger post office, newspapers, telephones, and electric lights. And restaurants, hotels, boarding houses, pool halls, lodge rooms, and theaters. In the half century between 1865 and 1915 more than 50 large commercial buildings - an average of one a year - went up in downtown Huntingdon. Nothing remotely approaching such a boom has occurred in the same area since then.

A majority of those stylish structures survive today, many of them newly refurbished in cooperation with Huntingdon's on-going Main Street program.

The Code of Ordinances of the Borough of Huntingdon was prepared by Keystate Publishers, Inc., and adopted by the Borough of Huntingdon Borough Council on March 17, 2009 by *Ord.* 855.

#### Organization

The Code contains four parts which are (1) the valid current ordinances of the Borough of Huntingdon contained in Chapters 1 through 27, (2) the Appendix, which lists by abstracted title all ordinances of a temporary or "one time" nature, (3) the Table to the disposition of each ordinance ever enacted by the Borough of Huntingdon, and (4) the Index, which is an alphabetical arrangement of subjects.

In the Code each Chapter is separated by a divider tab, and specific ordinances can be located by subject on the contents page at the beginning of each Chapter. The Index may also be used to search for a subject when one is looking for general information on a particular subject, or if it is not known in which Chapter the subject might be found. The Appendix consists of several general categories containing a chronological listing of short subject descriptions along with a reference to the original ordinance and its date of enactment, if known.

The Table to disposition indicates what action has been taken by the Borough of Huntingdon Borough Council with regard to every ordinance ever enacted. An ordinance has either been (1) specifically repealed, (2) superseded by another ordinance, (3) is located in a Chapter of the Code book, or (4) is located in the Appendix. Annual tax rate and budget ordinances are located only in the Table. The Table is a cross reference to the original ordinance books of the Borough of Huntingdon, and to the location within the Code of each ordinance by number.

#### ORDINANCE NO. 858

AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE BOROUGH OF HUNTINGDON, HUNTINGDON COUNTY, PENNSYLVANIA; CONSOLIDATING, REVISING, AMENDING AND REPEALING CERTAIN ORDINANCES; ENACTING CERTAIN NEW PROVISIONS; PROVIDING A PROCEDURE FOR AMENDING THE CODE AND FOR THE CITATION OF THE CODE AND THE EFFECTIVE DATE THEREOF; ESTABLISHING RESPONSIBILITY FOR MAINTENANCE OF THE CODE; SAVING CERTAIN PROVISIONS FROM REPEAL; AND PRESCRIBING PENALTIES FOR VIOLATION.

The Borough of Huntingdon hereby ordains:

**Section 1. Adoption**. The "Code of Ordinances, Borough of Huntingdon," as prepared and published for the said Borough of Huntingdon, is hereby adopted as a consolidation, codification and revision of the ordinances of the Borough of Huntingdon. Chapters 1 through 27 thereof contain the text of the body of all general administrative and regulatory ordinances of the Borough of Huntingdon organized as follows:

#### TABLE OF CONTENTS

Chapter 1 Administration and Government		
Chapter 2 Animals		
Chapter 3 Bicycles		
Chapter 4 Buildings		
Chapter 5 Code Enforcement		
Chapter 6 Conduct		
Chapter 7 Fire Prevention and Fire Protection		
Chapter 8 Floodplains		
Chapter 9 [Reserved]		
Chapter 10 Health and Safety		
Chapter 11 Housing		
Chapter 12 [Reserved]		
Chapter 13 Licenses, Permits and General Business Regulations		
Chapter 14 [Reserved]		
Chapter 15 Motor Vehicles and Traffic		
Chapter 16 [Reserved]		
Chapter 17 Riverview Cemetery		
Chapter 18 Sewers and Sewage Disposal		
Chapter 19 [Reserved]		
Chapter 20 Solid Waste		
Chapter 21 Streets and Sidewalks		
Chapter 22 Subdivision and Land Development		
Chapter 23 Stormwater Management		
Chapter 24 Taxation; Special		
Chapter 25 Trees		
Chapter 26 Water		
Chapter 27 Zoning		
- · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		
APPENDIX		

A . . . . . . . Annexation of Territory

B I	Debt and Bond Issues
C I	Franchises and Services
D (	Governmental and Intergovernmental Affairs
E	Plan Approval
F I	Public Property
G	Sewers
Н 8	Streets and Sidewalks
I V	Water
J	Zoning: Prior Ordinances

Table to the Disposition of All Ordinances
Table to the Disposition of Significant Resolutions

The Appendix of the volume lists, by subject matter, in chronological order, the titles (or an abstract of title) of enactments of special nature or of historical interest, for the complete text of which the official records of the Borough of Huntingdon shall be authoritative.

**Section 2. Citation and Effective Date**. The codification referred to in Section 1 of this ordinance shall be known and cited officially as the "Borough of Huntingdon Code of Ordinances," and all future ordinances shall make reference thereto. This ordinance shall become effective immediately upon publication of notice of final enactment as required by law.

**Section 3. Saving Clause**. The provisions of the Borough of Huntingdon Code of Ordinances, so far as they are the same as those ordinances and regulations in force immediately prior to the adoption of said Code, are intended as a continuation of such ordinances and regulations and not as a new enactment. The provisions of the Borough of Huntingdon Code of Ordinances shall not affect any suit or prosecution pending or to be instituted to enforce any of the prior ordinances or regulations.

**Section 4. Consolidation and Revision**. As a necessary part of codification, the following provisions are hereby consolidated and revised as indicated:

#### A. Consolidations.

Section	Subject		Ordinance No., Section
		[Reserved]	
B. Revisions.			
Section	Subject		Ordinance No., Section
		[Reserved]	

**Section 5. New Enactments, Amendments and Repeals**. As a necessary part of codification, the following ordinances are hereby enacted, amended and repealed as summarized by short title:

#### A. New Enactments.

Section	Subject
§§1-101–1-111	Preliminary Provisions
§§1-501–1-507	Imposition and Collection of Attorney's Fees
§§7-501–7-507	Smoke Detectors
§§10-301–10-306	Outdoor Wood Furnaces
§§25-101–25-113	Shade Trees

### B. Amendments.

Section	Subject	Ordinance No., Section
§1-207	Powers and Duties	423
§1-306	Powers and Duties	452; 514; 541; 708
§1-309	Disability or Absence of the Manager	452
§1-316	Powers and Duties	646
§1-324	Appointment	627
§2-101	Running at Large Restricted	604
§2-102	Removal of Feces	604
§2-103	Violations and Penalties	604; 674
§2-202	Violations and Penalties	354
§2-301	Definitions	762
§2-306	Enforcement; Violations and Penalties	762
§3-102	Registration and Tagging	185; 485; 529; 573
§3-104	Violations and Penalties	185; 346; 598, §70-4
§4-104	Display of Assigned Numbers	355
§4-106	Violations and Penalties	355
§4-205	Notice Procedures	830, §1.06
§4-210	Penalties	830, §1.10
§5-301	Scope	801
§5-303	Vacant Structures and Land	801
§5-311	Definitions	801
§5-321	Sanitation	801
§5-324	Weeds and Leaves	801
§5-325	Rat Harborage	801
§5-333	Street Numbers	801

Section	Subject	Ordinance No., Section
§5-335	Foundation Walls	801
§5-337	Roofs and Drainage	801
§5-346	Basement Hatchways	801
§5-361	Infestation	801
§5-365	Occupant	801
§5-371	Violations and Penalties	801
§6-101	Public Consumption; Open Containers	733
§6-102	Violations and Penalties	733
§6-205	Violations and Penalties	790
§6-301	Discharge Restricted	357
§6-302	Violations and Penalties	357; 598, §106-2
§6-404	Violations and Penalties	200; 598, §142-4
§6-502	Violations and Penalties	358
§6-511	Littering and Dumping Restricted	486
§6-512	Violations and Penalties	486
§6-603	Violations and Penalties	805
§6-706	Violations and Penalties	516; 518
§7-101	Definitions	712
§7-103	Fire Companies Authorized to Provide Fire Protection	712
§7-106	Collection of Costs of Fire Protection Services	712; 769
§7-109	Violations and Penalties	712
§7-301	Definitions	788
§7-302	Outdoor Burning	788
§7-305	Violations and Penalties	788
§7-409	Violations and Penalties	723
§8-102	Word Usage; Definitions	728
§8-107	Issuance of Building Permits	728
§8-108	Application Procedures and Requirements	728
§8-114	Inspection and Revocation	728
§8-115	Fees	728
§8-121	Technical Provisions	728

Section	Subject	Ordinance No., Section
§8-122	Specific Requests for FW and FA Areas	728
§8-123	Elevation and Floodproofing Requirements	728
§8-124	Design and Construction Standards	728
§8-125	Development Which May Endanger Human Life	728
§8-126	Special Requirements for Manufactured Homes	728
§8-127	Activities Requiring Special Permits	728
§8-128	Application Requirements for Special Permits	728
§8-129	Application Review Procedures	728
§8-130	Special Technical Requirements	728
§8-132	Improvements	728
§8-134	Enforcements; Violations and Penalties	728
§10-106	Regulations for Display, Sale and Production of Foodstuffs	360
§10-107	Violations and Penalties	360; 598, §124-7.A
§10-201	Vegetative Growth a Nuisance under Certain Conditions	328; 598, §74-1A
§10-204	Violations and Penalties	328
§11-102	Filing Deadlines	770
§11-104	Violations and Penalties	770
§13-102	Violations and Penalties	825
§13-201	Definitions	822
§13-205	Violations and Penalties	822
§13-302	Licenses and Fees	362; 556; 806
§15-106	Establishment of Crosswalks, Safety Zones, Traffic Lanes and Parking	364, §198-6
§15-312	Parking Permits for Physicians	364, §198-31
§15-402	Persons Authorized to Install	364, §198-33
§15-409	Parking Meter Covers	364, §198-40
§15-412	Parking Lots	364, §190-40.3; 763
§15-601	Operation Limited	501, §138-1; 502; 828, §§1, 2
§15-602	Violations and Penalties	501, §138-2; 502

Section	Subject	Ordinance No., Section
§15-701	Authorization for Removal and Impoundment	364, §198-41
§15-803	Violations and Penalties	364, §198-51; 800; 849, §1
§15-804	Enforcement	364, §198-52
§15-903	Schedule III: One-Way Streets	364, §198-55; 633; 702; 789
§15-905	Schedule V: Prohibited Turns at Intersections	364, §198-57; 724; 848, §1
§15-907	Schedule VII: Stop Intersections	364, §198-59; 588; 601; 607; 626; 631; 641; 648; 664; 673; 689; 698; 796; 672; 677; 851, §1
§15-911	Schedule XI: Commercial Vehicles and Trucks Excluded	364, §198-63; 833, §1
§15-912	Schedule XII: Parking Prohibited at All Times	364, §198-64; 743; 725; 791
§15-915	Schedule XV: Parking Prohibited Certain Hours	364, §198-67; 592; 595; 628; 707; 741; 777; 802; 853, §1
§17-104	Duties of Superintendent	344; 598, §86-6
§17-106	Lot Prices, Rules and Regulations	344; 476; 498; 560; 598, §86-8; 717; 750; 827, §1
§17-107	Disposition of Revenues	344; 598, §86-9
§17-108	Delinquent Payments by Purchasers	344; 598, §86-10
§17-110	Tampering with Objects in Cemetery	344; 598, §86-12
§17-111	Duties of Highway and Cemetery Superintendent	344
§17-202	Violations and Penalties	598; §86-18
§18-101	Definitions	301
§18-123	Building Sewer Standards	301; 517
§18-128	Owners to Advise Borough of Address and Tenancy	301; 517
§18-129	Violations and Penalties	301; 517
§18-142	Tappage and Connection Fees; Definitions	190; 554; 598, §169-2; 634; 676; 729
§18-144	Violations and Penalties	190; 347; 598, §169-4
§18-203	Violations and Penalties	232; 598, §169-7
§20-102	License Required	632; 636; 690; 749

Section	Subject	Ordinance No., Section
§20-104	Collection and Transportation of Waste	632
§20-107	Fees	670
§20-110	Use of Disposal Sites	632
§20-112	Construction and Demolition Waste	632
§20-113	Disposition of Moneys Collected	632
§20-117	Violations and Penalties; Enforcement	632
§20-201	Collection Period	543; 779
§20-203	Bag Specifications	543; 779
§20-204	Violations and Penalties	543; 598, §203-15
§20-304	Fee	669
§20-305	Violations and Penalties	669
§20-410	Permit Fee	761
§20-411	Violations and Penalties	761
§21-101	Permit Required	343; 558
§21-102	Conditions to Be Specified in Permit	343; 794
§21-103	Restoration after Excavation	343; 405; 579; 794
§21-104	[Reserved]	343; 579; 794
§21-105	Permit Fee	343; 409; 482; 558; 559; 580; 598, §177-5; 794
§21-108	Violations and Penalties	343; 598, §177-8
§21-202	Application and Fee for Permit	260; 349; 598, §177-10; 794
§21-203	Inspections; Conformity Required	260; 349; 794
§21-205	Violations and Penalties	260; 598, §177-13
§21-301	Construction or Reconstruction by Property Owners upon Notice	365
§21-302	Repair by Property Owners upon Notice	365
§21-304	Width of Sidewalk	365
§21-305	Repair by Property Owners upon Notice	365
§21-306	Inspections; Determination of Reconstruction or Repair	365; 794
§21-307	Authority of Property Owner to Initiate Work	365; 794
§21-309	Violations and Penalties	365; 598, §177-22

Section	Subject	Ordinance No., Section
§21-405	Violations and Penalties	441; 598, §177-27
§21-504	Violations and Penalties	793
§21-604	Violations and Penalties	816
§23-105	Definitions and Word Usage	699
§23-106	General Provisions	699
§23-108	Design Criteria for Stormwater Management Facilities	699
§23-112	Drainage Plan Contents	699
§23-113	Plan Submission	699
§23-114	Drainage Plan Review	699
§24-208	Powers and Duties of Collector	399
§26-112	Circumstances Requiring Application for Service	327; 635; 730
§26-121	Connection at Main; Fees	327; 555; 637; 675
§26-124	Separate Service Lines to Be Provided; Exceptions	327
§26-141	Fire Hydrants	327
§26-147	Meters for Private Fire Service	327
§26-148	Charging and Supply for Private Fire Service	327
§26-151	Meters Property of Borough; Location of Meters	327; 635
§26-158	Deposit for Test of Meter	327
§26-167	Charge for Restoration of Discontinued Service	327; 484; 500
§26-168	Charge to Reinstall Meters Removed Because of Damage	327
§26-199	Violations and Penalties	327; 428, §1
§26-201	Definitions	327
§26-203	Rates and Charges	327; 506; 539; 581; 586; 590; 593; 602; 606; 623
§26-204	Reading Meters and Determining Billings	327; 418; 496; 506; 539; 581; 586; 593
§26-205	Billing Address; Postmark to Be Date of Payment	327; 593

# C. Repeals.

Ord./Res.	Subject
Ord. 333	Sewer Rates and Uses
Ord. 359	Tampering with Public Property
Ord. 363	Poles and Wires
Ord. 419	Sewer Rates and Uses
Ord. 420	Sewer Rates and Uses
Ord. 481	Poles and Wires
Ord. 495	Sewer Rates and Uses
Ord. 497	Poles and Wires
Ord. 540	Sewer Rates and Uses
Ord. 576	Revenue Sharing
Ord. 582	Sewer Rates and Uses
Ord. 589	Sewer Rates and Uses
Ord. 594	Sewer Rates and Uses
Ord. 598, §§159-2, 159-3	Poles and Wires
Ord. 598, §163-6A	Tampering with Public Property
Ord. 598, §169-69	Sewer Usage
Ord. 599	Sewer Usage
Ord. 600	Sewer Usage
Ord. 603	Sewer Rates and Uses
Ord. 614	Poles and Wires
Ord. 624	Sewer Rates and Uses
Ord. 662	Sewer Rates and Uses
Ord. 686	Personnel Policies; Employment Procedures
Ord. 736	Realty Transfer Tax
Ord. 754	Sewers; Sewers, Cesspools and Connections

**Section 6. Adoption of Standard Codes by Reference**. As a necessary part of codification, the following ordinances are hereby enacted by reference as standard codes summarized by short title:

Section	Short Title	
	[Reserved]	

**Section 7. Land Use Amendments**. The Borough of Huntingdon Code of Ordinances is hereby amended as is more fully shown in the complete text of Chapters 22 and 27

thereof which is attached hereto and made part hereof by reference hereto as if fully set out at length herein, with deletions shown by strike-through and additions shown by underline, all of which is briefly summarized hereinafter.

A. *New Provisions*. The following provisions are new provisions which are being added to the Code, are underlined throughout the text, and are summarized as follows:

Section Subject

[Reserved]

B. *Revised Provisions*. The following provisions of the Code are revised, the text of which indicates deletions by strike-through and additions shown by <u>underline</u>, and are summarized as follows:

Section	Subject	Ordinance No., Section
§22-201	Definitions	449, §200; 523; 760
§22-302	Large Scale Developments	449, §301
§22-402	Preapplication Plans and Data	449, §401; 499
§22-403	Plans and Data for Preliminary Approval	449, §402; 499
§22-404	Plans and Data for Final Approval	449, §403
§22-405	Filing of Plans	449, §404; 499; 653
§22-408	Minor Subdivisions	449, §405
§22-501	General Standards	449, §500
§22-506	Building Lines	449, §505
§22-511	Erosion and Sedimentation Control	449, §510
§22-513	Responsibilities	449, §512
§22-801	Enforcement Remedies	449
§22-802	Preventative Remedies	449
§22-903	Permit Required to Alter or Construct	449, App. I
§22-905	Application Fee for Approvals	449, App. I
§22-906	Licenses	449, App. I
§22-908	Existing Parks	449, App. I
§22-917	Water Supply	449, App. I
§22-918	Sewage Disposal	449, App. I
§22-920	Refuse Disposal	449, App. I
§22-921	Insect and Rodent Control	449, App. I
§22-923	Park Management Responsibilities	449, App. I
§27-107	Enforcement, Violations and Penalties	843, §106

Section	Subject	Ordinance No., Section
§27-807	Moving of Buildings	843, §807

C. Repealed Provisions. The following provisions of the Code are repealed, the text of which indicates deletions by strike-through, and are as follows:

Section Subject Ordinance No., Section
[Reserved]

**Section 8. Procedural Changes.** The following minor procedural changes have been made to existing Borough of Huntingdon ordinances:

- A. Grammatical and spelling errors have been corrected where necessary;
- B. Minor changes have been made to correct obsolete terms and usages;
- C. The penalty provisions have been revised where necessary to comply with the Pennsylvania Borough Code, Vehicle Code, Municipalities Planning Code and the Local Tax Enabling Act.

**Section 9. Amending the Code of Ordinances**. The procedure for amending the Code of Ordinances shall include the citation of the Chapter, Part, Section and subsection to be amended, revised, repealed or added as follows:

A.	<u>Amendment or Revision</u> - "Chapter, Article, Section, Subsection is hereby amended [revised] to read as follows"
В.	<u>Additions</u> - "Chapter, Article, Section, Subsection is hereby amended by the addition of the following"
C.	Repeal - "Chapter, Article, Section, Subsection is hereby repealed in its entirety."

**Section 10. Responsibility for Code of Ordinances.** It shall be the responsibility of the Borough of Huntingdon Secretary to maintain an up-to-date certified copy of the Code of Ordinances. This copy shall be the official copy of the Borough of Huntingdon Code of Ordinances and shall be available for public inspection.

**Section 11. Penalties**. It shall be unlawful for anyone to change, alter or tamper with the Code of Ordinances in any manner which will intentionally misrepresent the laws of the Borough of Huntingdon. Whosoever shall violate this Section shall be guilty of an offense under §4911, "Tampering with Public Records or Information," of the Crimes Code, 18 Pa.C.S.A. §4911, and shall be prosecuted under that Section of the law.

**Section 12. Severability of Parts of Codification**. It is hereby declared to be the intention of the Borough of Huntingdon that the Chapters, Parts, Sections, paragraphs, sentences, clauses and phrases of this codification are severable. If any Section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this Code is declared unconstitutional, illegal or otherwise invalid by the judgment or decree of a court of competent jurisdiction, that

invalidity shall not affect any of the remaining Chapters,	Parts,	Sections,	paragraphs	١,
sentences, clauses or phrases of this codification.				

ENACTED AND ORDAINED this 17th day of March, 2009.

Borough of Huntingdon ATTEST:

/s/ Karen A. Foust

<u>/s/ Glenn Stampfle</u>
President, Borough Council Secretary

APPROVED this  $17^{th}$  day of March, 2009.

/s/ Foster G. Ulrich Jr. Mayor

# Fee Schedule<sup>1</sup>

[Reserved]

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup>Editor's Note: A comprehensive Fee Schedule is being prepared by the Borough of Huntingdon and will be included here upon enactment by the Borough Council

